BEAUFORT COUNTY DESIGN REVIEW BOARD (DRB) MINUTES

June 6, 2019, Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC

Members Present: James Atkins, J. Michael Brock, Sallie Bridgwater-Brach, Peter Brower and

H. Pearce Scott

Members Absent: Brad Hill and Donald L. Starkey

Staff Present: Nancy Moss, Beaufort County Community Development Department

Guests: Jason Broene, Court Atkins Architects; Rob Hattler, Fraser Construction; Ben Daster, W4 Car

Wash; and, Justin Hendley, W4 Car Wash

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Atkins called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.

- **2. MINUTES:** Chairman Atkins asked if there were comments on the May 2, 2019 minutes. No comments were made. Ms. Bridgwater-Brach motioned to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Brock seconded to approve. Motion carried.
- 3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS: There was no public comment.

4. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Burton / Pinewood Fire Station Renovation / Addition - Conceptual:

Mr. Atkins recused himself from the meeting. Mr. Brock officiated the project review. Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Brock asked for public comment, but no comments were made. Jason Broene, the project Architect gave the presentation for the project. He said that the primary purpose of the renovation/addition project was to improve the living quality for the firefighters and to improve some safety issues. Mr. Broene described the various rooms that were in the existing building and detailed which rooms would be contained in the new addition. He stated that the new two-story element allows for the creation of a formal building entrance. Mr. Broene said that the existing front facade was clad in stucco with metal trim and roofing. He stated that the new addition would be clad in stucco to match the existing building front, that a brick water table would be added to the two-story element, that the front entry feature facade would have hardie panel & trim work and the roof would be covered with standing seam metal.

Ms. Bridgwater-Brach had no comments except that the addition was a big improvement to the building.

Mr. Scott said that the design was a vast improvement, but that it would be nice to add a front window next to entry door.

Mr. Brower agreed that the design was a big improvement and asked what the element was to the right of the front door. Mr. Broene said that it was the fire department signage.

Mr. Brock had no comments.

Mr. Brower made a motion to approve this project for Conceptual review with the following condition:

• Add a window adjacent to the front door.

Ms. Bridgwater-Brach seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

5. OLD BUSINESS:

A. John Harris Body Shop – Okatie - Final:

Mr. Atkins returned to the meeting and asked Mr. Brower to officiate the meeting. Mr. Atkins and Mr. Brock recused themselves from the meeting. Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Brower asked for public comment, but no comments were made. Jason Broene, the project Architect gave the presentation for the project. He said that there were no design changes made to the building after the conceptual DRB review. He stated that the landscape plan was revised and that additional plantings were added to the highway and thoroughfare buffers to meet the SRT conditions.

Mr. Scott said that it was a nice plan.

Ms. Bridgwater-Brach stated that the landscape plan was quite extensive.

Mr. Brower said that it was a good-looking design.

Mr. Scott made a motion to approve this project for Final review as submitted. Mr. Brower seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

B. W4 Express Car Wash – Bluffton - Final:

Mr. Atkins and Mr. Brock returned to the meeting. Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Atkins asked for public comment, but no comments were made. Justin Hendley, the W4 Operations Manager, said he had nothing to add to the staff report.

Mr. Brock said that they did an excellent job at meeting the DRB conditions.

Mr. Brower said that it was a good-looking project.

Mr. Scott agreed with Mr. Brower.

Ms. Bridgwater-Brach agreed that it was a good-looking project.

Mr. Atkins agreed with the Board and said that care should be taken during the installation of the stormwater chambers to avoid damaging the trees within the Natural Resource protection areas.

Mr. Brock asked how the dumpster gates would look. Mr. Hendley said that the gates would match the design of the sides of the dumpster enclosure.

Mr. Brock made a motion to approve this project for final review as submitted. Mr. Brower seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

Mr. Atkins stated that "the building facade improvements and lighting must be built/installed according to the plans reviewed and approved by the DRB. The material and color board reviewed and approved by the DRB must be adhered to during construction. Any changes to the approved plans or submittals must be requested for and submitted to the DRB for formal approval."

- **6. OTHER BUSINESS:** Mr. Atkins said the next scheduled meeting was at 2:30 p.m. on Thursday, July 11, 2019 at the Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC 29909. Mr. Brock said that he would not be able to attend the July meeting.
- **7. ADJOURNMENT:** Mr. Brower made a motion to close the meeting and Mr. Brock seconded the motion. The meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m.